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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

ORLANDO DIVISION 

 
 

OLMEDO VASQUEZ-SAAVEDRA, 

FELIX PEREZ, LUIS ROBLES and   

OMAR MARTINEZ, on behalf of themselves  

and others similarly situated, 

  

                                          Plaintiffs,                                               Case No.: 

 

v. 

        

BLUEGREEN VACATIONS UNLIMITED, INC., 

d/b/a THE FOUNTAINS RESORT, and  

KEN MORGAN, individually, 

 

                             Defendants. 

__________________________________________/ 

 

 
COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs, OLMEDO VASQUEZ-SAAVEDRA, FELIX PEREZ, LUIS ROBLES, and 

OMAR MARTINEZ, on behalf of themselves and other similarly situated employees, bring this 

action for unpaid overtime compensation, and other relief under the Fair Labor Standards Act, as 

amended, 29 U.S.C. 216(b) (the “FLSA”) against BLUEGREEN VACATIONS UNLIMITED, 

INC., d/b/a THE FOUNTAINS RESORT (“Bluegreen”) and KEN MORGAN, individually 

(collectively “Defendants”). 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and others similarly situated, bring this action 

against Defendants seeking legal relief and compensation because Defendants violated their 

federally protected rights under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. 201, et. seq.  

2. Plaintiffs worked in “Front Line” and “In House” sales and marketing positions at 

The Fountains Resort in Orlando, Florida, selling “vacation ownership” opportunities to 
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prospective buyers and “upgrades” to existing owners. 

3. Typically, prospects attended group presentations touting the benefits of vacation 

ownership. Upon conclusion of the group presentation, Plaintiffs’ job was to convince prospects to 

purchase vacation ownership packages, i.e. close the deal and sell the timeshares.  Plaintiffs 

worked exclusively on The Fountains property and did not solicit outside sales. 

4. Pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated, 

were non-exempt employees and therefore entitled to overtime for all hours worked over 40 in 

each workweek. However, Defendants refused to pay Plaintiffs and others similarly situated the 

overtime wages to which they were lawfully and contractually entitled. 

5. Defendants violated the FLSA by, inter alia requiring Plaintiffs and others to 

work “off the clock” so Defendants did not have to pay them overtime compensation.   Defendants 

used threats, intimidation and falsified time records to ensure employees were never paid 

overtime. As a result, employee time records rarely, if ever, reflected more than 40 hours worked 

per week.  However, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated regularly worked 60-80 hours per 

week without receiving overtime compensation. 

PARTIES 

6. Plaintiff Olmedo Vasquez-Saavedra, worked in various Front Line and In House 

sales positions at The Fountains Resort between March, 2011 until August, 2016. 

7. Plaintiff Felix Perez worked in various Front Line and In House sales positions at 

The Fountains Resort between January, 2010 and July, 2015. 

8. Plaintiff Luis Robles worked in various Front Line and In House sales positions at 

The Fountains Resort between June, 2011 and June, 2015. 

9. Plaintiff, Omar Martinez worked in various sales representative positions at the 

Fountains Resort between August, 2012 and January, 2015. 

10. Defendant, Bluegreen Vacations Unlimited, Inc. manages and markets timeshare 
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resorts located throughout the United States and Caribbean.  Bluegreen’s corporate headquarters is 

located at 4960 Conference Way North, Boca Raton, Florida.  The Fountains, the property at 

which Plaintiffs and others similarly situated were employed, is located at 12400 International 

Drive South, Orlando, Florida.  

11. Defendant, Ken Morgan, has at all times relevant been the Sales Director of The 

Fountains Resort.  As Sales Director, Mr. Morgan dictated the unlawful Bluegreen’s unlawful 

policies and practices, managed and controlled Plaintiffs’ daily work activities and had the 

authority to discipline and terminate Plaintiffs.  

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

12. This action is brought under the FLSA to recover from Defendants overtime 

compensation, liquidated damages, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

13. This court has jurisdiction over Plaintiff's claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1337 and 

the FLSA. 

14. Venue is proper in this Court because the violations of law alleged in this action 

occurred in Orange County, Florida. 

15. At all material times relevant to this action, Defendants were an enterprise 

covered by the FLSA, as defined by 29 U.S.C. §§203(r) and 203(s). 

16. Defendant Bluegreen markets and sells timeshares throughout the United States 

and Caribbean.  Defendant Bluegreen has had gross revenues of at least $500,000.00 annually for 

the preceding three years and has employed employees engaged in commerce or in the production 

of goods for commerce. Specifically, Bluegreen’s employees handle, sell and otherwise work on 

goods that have been moved in or produced for interstate commerce, including marketing 

materials, pens and paper.  

17. At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated were 

employees of Defendants as defined by the FLSA. 
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18. At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated were 

non-exempt employees pursuant to the FLSA and were therefore entitled to overtime 

compensation. 

19. At all times relevant to this action, Defendants failed to comply with 29 U.S.C. §§ 

201-209, because Defendants did not pay Plaintiffs and others similarly situated overtime wages 

for those hours worked in excess of forty (40) within a work week. 

20. While employed by Bluegreen in the three years preceding the filing of this 

Complaint, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated were not paid time and one-half their regular 

rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) within a work week during one or more 

weeks of employment. 

21. Defendants used intimidation, coercion to ensure time records were falsified.  

Defendant Ken Morgan and others working under his direction required employees to falsify their 

time records to reflect less than forty hours per week even though the employees worked more 

than 40 hours per week.  Defendant Ken Morgan and other management personnel repeatedly 

threatened to terminate Plaintiffs if they did not falsify their time records to show less than 40 

hours worked every week. 

22. To keep their jobs, Plaintiffs did as instructed.  Specifically, Plaintiffs were 

required by their superiors to clock out but continue working, often an additional 5-10 hours per 

day.  Plaintiffs did not have a choice.  If Plaintiffs did not do as they were instructed by their 

superiors, they would have been terminated. 

23. By forcing Plaintiffs to punch out but continue working, Plaintiffs’ time records 

showed less than 40 hours worked per week.  In reality, Plaintiffs worked closer to an average of 

60-80 hours per week. In essence, Plaintiffs were forced to falsify their own time records. 

24. Defendants knew Plaintiffs were non-exempt employees entitled to overtime 

because the job descriptions and other documents drafted by Defendants designated Plaintiff’s 
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status as “non-exempt.” 

25. Defendants know Plaintiffs were working more than 40 hours per week without 

receiving overtime compensation.  

26. Additionally, Defendants adjusted Plaintiffs time records after the fact to ensure 

the hours work reflected in the records were less than 40 hours. 

27. Upon information and belief, Defendants did not rely on any Department of Labor 

Wage and Hour Opinions or the advice of an attorney in creating its pay policies. 

28. Defendants are a sophisticated employer with the resources to ensure compliance 

with the FLSA. Therefore, Defendants knew or should have known with reasonable diligence that 

their conduct violated the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 

COUNT I 

RECOVERY OF OVERTIME COMPENSATION 

29. Plaintiffs reincorporate and readopt all allegations contained in Paragraphs 1-28 

above. 

30. Plaintiffs were entitled to be paid time and one-half times their regular rate of pay 

for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) per work week. 

31. During their employment with Defendants, Plaintiffs regularly worked overtime 

hours but were not paid time and one-half compensation for the same. 

32. As a result of Defendants’ intentional, willful, and unlawful acts in refusing to pay 

Plaintiffs time and one-half their regular rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) 

per work week in one or more work weeks, Plaintiffs have suffered damages and are incurring 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

33. Defendants were aware Plaintiffs performed non-exempt job duties but still 

refused to pay Plaintiff overtime for hours worked over forty (40). 

34. Defendants did not maintain and keep accurate time records as required by the 
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FLSA for Plaintiffs. 

35. Defendants failed to post required FLSA informational listings as required by the 

FLSA. 

36. Defendants’ conduct was in reckless disregard of the overtime requirements of the 

FLSA. 

37. Defendants willfully violated the FLSA. 

38. Plaintiffs are entitled to liquidated damages. 

39. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants for the payment of all 

overtime hours worked at one and one-half the regular rate of pay for which Defendants did not 

properly compensate them, liquidated damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in 

this action, and all further relief that this Court deems to be just and appropriate. 

COUNT II  

COLLECTIVE ACTION, VIOLATION OF FLSA 

(FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME) 

40. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1-28as if fully set forth herein. 

41. Defendants employed numerous other non-exempt In House and Front Line sales 

representatives who worked a substantial number of hours in excess of forty (40) per week. 

42. These employees performed the same job duties as Plaintiffs, worked under the 

same supervisors and were subject to the same terms and conditions of employment.  Defendants 

failed to pay these individuals similarly situated to Plaintiffs one and one half times their regular 

hourly rate, for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in each week, in violation of the FLSA. 

43. Defendants’ failure to pay such similarly situated individuals the required 

overtime rate was willful and in reckless disregard of the FLSA. 

44. As a direct and legal consequence of Defendants unlawful acts, individuals 
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similarly situated to Plaintiffs have suffered damages and have incurred, or will incur, costs and 

attorneys’ fees in the prosecution of this matter. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand that similarly situated employees have judgment 

entered against Defendants for the payment of all overtime hours at one and one-half the regular 

rate of pay for the hours worked over forty for which Defendants did not properly them, liquidated 

damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action, and all further relief that this 

Court deems to be just and appropriate. 

JURY DEMAND 

 Plaintiff demands trial by jury on all issues so triable as a matter of right by jury. 

Respectfully submitted, this 25
th
 day of October, 2016. 

MORGAN & MORGAN, P.A. 

/s/ Marc R. Edelman 

MARC R. EDELMAN, ESQ. 

Fla. Bar No. 0096342  

Morgan & Morgan, P.A. 

201 N. Franklin Street, #600 

Tampa, FL 33602 

Telephone 813-223-5505 

Fax: 813-257-0572 

Email: Medelman@forthepeople.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff 
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